# Centre College Annual Security and Fire Report



# **Centre College Annual Security and Fire Safety Report**

# **Table of Contents**

Introduction	4
Crime Reporting	4
Building Security	5
Authority of Officers	5
Relationship with Local Law Enforcement	5
Crime Reporting Procedures for Pastoral and Professional Counseling	5
Crime Prevention	5
Centre College Alcohol and Drug Policy	6
Emergency Response	7
Notification to the Centre Community about an Immediate Threat	8
Procedures for Testing Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures	8
Shelter-in-Place Procedures – What it Means to "Shelter-in-Place"	9
Sexual Misconduct Policy	10
Overview of Sexual Misconduct	10
Resources	11
Title IX Coordinator and Title IX Team	12
What To Do If You Need Immediate Help	14
Reporting Options and Considerations	14
Responsible Employees	15
Confidentiality	15
Confidential Disclosure	16
Reports to Law Enforcement	17
Complaint Procedures	17
College's Responsibility	17
Immediate College Action	18
The Rights of the Parties	18
Availability of Formal and Informal Resolution Options	18
Informal Resolution Process	19

	Formal Resolution Process	20
	Administrative Hearing	22
	Hearing Procedure	22
	Appeals Process	23
	Disciplinary Action	24
	Sanctions	24
	Final Report	25
S	exual Misconduct Policy Definitions	25
	Reporting Party	25
	Responding Party	25
	Sexual Misconduct	25
	Sexual Harassment	25
	Sexual Violence	26
	Consent	26
	Incapacitation	27
	Capability to Give Consent	27
	Domestic Violence	27
	Dating Violence	28
	Stalking	28
	Sexual Exploitation	28
	Bullying	28
	Retaliation	29
	Responsible Employee	29
P	olicy Statement Addressing Sex Offender Registration	29
C	entre College Missing Student Policy	29
C	ampus Fire Safety Annual Compliance Report	31
	Overview	31
	On-Campus Housing Fire Safety Equipment	31
	Fire Safety Education, Training and Fire Drills	31
F	ire Prevention Related Policies and Programs	32
	Fire Safety Regulations and Policies	32

Fire Evacuation Procedures	33
Campus Crime and Fire Log	33
Centre College Crime Statistics Reporting Table	35
Centre College Residential Fire Protection Information	37

#### Introduction

The safety of every person using our facilities is a primary concern of Centre College. The college maintains a staff of public safety officers who monitor the campus and respond to calls for assistance. There is at least one officer on duty around the clock, seven days a week. The officers are trained in various areas of general and fire safety.

# **Crime Reporting**

All crimes may be reported to the Department of Public Safety by calling (859)236-HELP (4357) or by visiting our office located in the Walnut House. Members of the Centre community are encouraged to voluntarily report all crimes to Public Safety or the Danville Police Department with the understanding that confidentiality will be respected at all times. Those crimes that are covered in the Clery Act will be included in our annual statistics. Public Safety will call for assistance from the Danville Police Department in situations involving incidents where sworn law enforcement is required. We may handle crimes involving property or other non-violent crimes administratively. The Department of Public Safety will issue a safety alert via an all-campus e-mail to the Centre Community when there is a crime that presents a safety or security threat to students, faculty or staff. This will be followed with hard-copy notices posted in campus buildings. In the event of an emergency that is in progress, the Department of Public Safety will activate our mass notification system where phone and text messages as well as e-mails are immediately sent to the campus community.

The Department of Public Safety prepares this report to comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act. The full text of this report can be located on our web site at <a href="https://www.centre.edu/offices/public-safety-dps/">https://www.centre.edu/offices/public-safety-dps/</a>. You will also be able to connect to our site via the Centre College Home page at www.centre.edu. This report is prepared in cooperation with the local law enforcement agencies surrounding our campus and the Student Life Office. Campus crime, arrest and referral statistics include those reported to the Department of Public Safety, designated campus officials and the Danville Police. Each year, an e-mail notification is sent to all enrolled students, faculty and staff that provides the web site to access this report. Copies of the report may also be obtained at the Department of Public Safety located at the Walnut House or by calling (859) 236-4357.

The following is a list of the campus security authorities to whom crimes should be reported:

- 1. Directors of Public Safety, Public Safety Officers
- 2. Vice President & Dean of Student Life
- 3. Associate Dean of Student Life
- 4. Director of Student Life and Housing
- 5. Director of Residence Life
- 6. Assistant Director of Residence Life
- 7. Student Life Coordinators
- 8. Director of Greek Life & New Student Orientation
- 9. Director of Campus Activities & Leadership Programming
- 10. Director of Community Service and the Bonner Program
- 11. Athletic Coaching Staff
- 12. Study Abroad Program Coordinators
- 13. Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs & Special Assistant to the President
- 14. Title IX Coordinator
- 15. Director of Diversity and Inclusion Programming

# **Building Security**

With the exception of Centre's residence halls, all buildings are unlocked in the morning and relocked in the evening. All exterior residence hall doors are locked at all times. Access to residence halls is limited to residents, authorized personnel, and invited guests of residents. Entrances to the residence halls are secured with card access controlled by the Department of Public Safety. There are some smaller buildings with combination punch locks, which are changed periodically by Public Safety.

The Department of Public Safety staff is responsible for checking for safety and security related issues and for filing follow-up maintenance requests.

# **Authority of Officers**

The Department of Public Safety personnel do not have arrest powers. Their authority is established and defined by the administrative officers of Centre College. The policies established by the administration provide for crime prevention and victim assistance. Public Safety officers provide basic security and monitor the campus for safety deficiencies. The officers also perform an academic service and support role at Centre College because observance of policies, rules, and regulations, is part of the overall educational experience. It is their responsibility to provide reasonable assistance in the enforcement of state and local laws. They make every reasonable effort to provide a safe living and learning environment for our students, faculty and staff. They do not limit their efforts to criminal activities (the primary focus of this report) but will respond to any matter involving the personal safety of someone in the Centre College community.

# **Relationship with Local Law Enforcement**

The Department of Public Safety maintains a close working relationship with state and local police agencies, especially the Danville Police Department. Centre has established a policy where the DPS officer on duty phones the Danville Police Department on a daily basis to collect information on crimes reported to them involving the campus or contiguous area. Centre DPS relays all situations involving weapons or the potential for violence to the Danville Police Department for assistance. While there is no written memorandum of understanding with the Danville Police Department, we have a long-standing verbal agreement with the Chief of Police that they will respond to our calls for assistance.

# **Crime Reporting Procedures for Pastoral and Professional Counseling**

Pastoral and professional counseling services, along with the Department of Public Safety, are members of the Student Life Office staff. The Student Life Office staff meets on a weekly basis. Counselors are encouraged if and when they deem appropriate to inform persons that they are counseling of crime reporting procedures for inclusion in the annual crime statistics.

#### **Crime Prevention**

Crime prevention at Centre College is a top priority of the DPS. Every reasonable effort is made to help people avoid becoming crime victims. This focus is evident in the crime prevention efforts of the DPS and the Student Life Office through which it reports. The DPS participates in the first-year orientation process, presenting basic crime prevention information to all new students. The Directors of Public Safety also conduct a training session with all the RA staff. The educational process continues periodically in residence hall meetings conducted by public safety personnel, hall directors, and the resident assistants. All pertinent security

information and campus regulations are published in the <u>Student Handbook</u>. More specific notices are also distributed when events or circumstances need to be explained to the campus community. The <u>Student Handbook</u> is available on the Centre College website.

# **Centre College Alcohol and Drug Policy**

The Federal Drug Free Schools and Communities Acts Amendments of 1989 require all public and private institutions of higher education to develop, distribute, and publicize a policy establishing standards of conduct regarding drugs and alcohol. It is the intention of that legislation and, in complying, it is the intention of this Centre policy to address the problem of underage and irresponsible drinking and/or use of illicit drugs on our campus should such problems arise.

The College's policy regarding the use of alcoholic beverages by students is derived from its general philosophy of student life. Centre students are regarded as persons who are morally and legally responsible for their own conduct within the context of the norms and values of an educational community and as responsible residents of the local community in which the College is located, with respect for the laws of the state and community. As part of its overall educational program and mission, the College provides counseling and educational programs related to alcohol and drug use and abuse.

The College regards intoxication as irresponsible behavior both because of its effects on an individual's ability to exercise sound judgment and because of its potential threats to health and safety. Not only do students incur serious risks for themselves and others when they drink to excess, but also they make themselves legally liable to prosecution, as well as morally responsible, when they contribute to irresponsible consumption by others and dire consequences ensue.

Students who are clearly in a state of intoxication, or who represent a possible threat to their own health and safety or to that of others, or who appear prone to disorderly conduct, are subject to sanctions through the College's judicial system. In cases of disorderly conduct or vandalism connected with the abuse of alcohol, the fact that the offender had been drinking will not be treated as a mitigating circumstance in meting out sanctions. The Department of Public Safety and other College officials are authorized to issue citations to those who are intoxicated in public.

The College campus is not immune from the intervention of law enforcement officers and the College and its officials do not exercise the role of law enforcement officers regarding the personal use of alcohol by students or their guests. The use of alcoholic beverages by students is a matter of individual choice and involves the student's acceptance of responsibility for whatever legal and personal consequences may ensue. The College does not accept legal liability for student violations of the law.

Whenever the use, possession, or sale of alcohol would represent a potential legal liability to the institution, the College is required to prohibit its availability. College officials cannot serve alcohol to students in violation of the law, nor can alcohol be used in places to which the public has ready access, such as athletic contests, in the dining hall, or in other locations that the College may stipulate from time to time.

Federal and State laws prohibit the illegal possession or misuse of drugs such as marijuana, barbiturates, amphetamines, prescription tranquilizers, LSD compounds, mescaline, psilocybin, DMT, narcotics (including cocaine), and opiates. Centre College will not condone the illegal possession or use of drugs and cannot and will not protect students from prosecution under State and Federal laws. In addition, possession on campus of

paraphernalia for the use of drugs is a violation of College regulations and sufficient reason for disciplinary action against those who are responsible for its presence or allow it in their rooms or vehicles.

Centre intends to send a "zero tolerance" message regarding illegal possession or misuse of drugs, or knowingly being in the presence of those who possess or misuse drugs. Students found to be in violation of this policy are subject to immediate administrative suspension. An example of "knowingly being in the presence of" someone possessing or misusing drugs is standing in a discernible group of people where one or more persons is using drugs when observed by a College official, giving rise to the inference that all those in the group were participating in a drug activity. This is only one example, but there could be many such situations, so students must be sure to dissociate themselves from those possessing or misusing drugs.

It is widely acknowledged that there are significant health risks associated with the use of drugs and abuse of alcohol. Physical and psychological dependence; damage (in many cases irreversible) to vital organs such as the brain, liver, lungs, heart, kidneys, and pancreas; heart attack, high blood pressure and strokes; birth defects; immunosuppression and increased susceptibility to infectious disease; coma; and death have all been attributed to use of illicit drugs or abuse of alcohol. Other less life threatening ill effects, but nonetheless serious in the college environment include nausea, convulsions, insomnia, delirium, depression, nervousness, loss of concentration, and fatigue.

During new student orientation each fall, educational programs about drug and alcohol abuse are presented. Topics of these programs include:

- Health Risks
- Federal, State, and Local Laws
- College Policy and Sanctions for Violation of Policy
- Availability of Counseling and Treatment

Centre offers confidential counseling services for alcohol and drug abuse through Campus Counseling Services located in Parsons Student Health Center. Appointments for counseling may be made by calling 859-238-5740. In addition, the Director of Counseling Services can refer students to off-campus treatment resources and self-help groups in the community. Any cost of off-campus treatment is the financial responsibility of the student and parents. In addition, Residence Directors and Resident Assistants are annually provided with training in peer counseling and intervention techniques. Alcohol and drug education and prevention programs are available to be provided by Parsons Student Health Center and the Campus Counseling staff. Students who violate the standards of this drug and alcohol policy will be subject through the usual channels to disciplinary sanctions including possible suspension or expulsion from the College. In addition, violators may be subject to prosecution or imprisonment and/or referral for mandatory treatment/educational services under established laws, which make such violations misdemeanor or felony crimes. The College chooses to inform students of the laws of the United States and the Commonwealth of Kentucky regarding the use, sale, and possession of alcoholic beverages in Kentucky, and the local option provisions of Boyle County, and also to warn them of the serious legal penalties to which they may be subject if they violate the laws. (Refer to the section on Federal, State, and Local Regulations in this Handbook.)

#### **Emergency Response**

The College's Crisis Management Plan includes information about the Crisis Management Team, emergency levels, incident command, emergency contacts, and evacuation and lockdown plans. The College conducts numerous emergency response exercises each year, such as tabletop exercises, field exercises, and tests of the

emergency notification systems on campus. These tests are designed to assess and evaluate the emergency plans and capabilities of the institution.

DPS officers and Directors have received training in Incident Command and Responding to Critical Incidents on Campus. When a serious incident occurs that causes an immediate threat to the campus, the first responders to the scene are usually the DPS, DPD and the Danville Fire Department, and they typically respond and work together to manage the incident. Depending on the nature of the incident, other Centre departments and other local or federal agencies could also be involved in responding to the incident.

General information about the emergency response and evacuation procedures for Centre is publicized each year as part of the institution's Clery Act compliance efforts and that information is available on the DPS web site. All members of the Centre Community are notified on an annual basis that they are required to notify the Department of Public Safety of any situation or incident on campus that involves a significant emergency or dangerous situation that may involve an immediate or ongoing threat to the health and safety of students and/or employees on campus. The Department of Public Safety has the responsibility of responding to, and summoning the necessary resources, to mitigate, investigate, and document any situation that may cause a significant emergency or dangerous situation. In addition, Public Safety has a responsibility to respond to such incidents to determine if the situation does in fact, pose a threat to the community. If that is the case, Federal Law requires that the institution immediately notify the campus community or the appropriate segments of the community that may be affected by the situation.

#### Notification to the Centre Community about an Immediate Threat

The Department of Public Safety receives incident information from various offices/departments on campus. If DPS confirms that there is an emergency or dangerous situation that poses an immediate threat to the health or safety of some or all members of the Centre Community, DPS will collaborate with members of the Student Life staff to determine the content of the message and will use some or all of the systems described below to communicate the threat to the Centre Community or to the appropriate segment of the community, if the threat is limited to a particular building or segment of the population. DPS will without delay and taking into account the safety of the community, determine the content of the notification and initiate the notification system, unless issuing a notification will, in the judgment of the first responders (including, but not limited to: DPS, DPD, and/or the Danville Fire Department), compromise the efforts to assist a victim or to contain, respond to, or otherwise mitigate the emergency.

In the event of a serious incident that poses an immediate threat to members of the Centre community, the College has various systems in place for communicating information quickly. Some or all of these methods of communication may be activated in the event of an immediate threat to the Centre campus community. These methods of communication include network emails, emergency text messages, and voice messages that can be sent to a phone as well as the television monitors located in the Campus Center and the Library. The College will post updates during a critical incident on the Centre web site at <a href="http://www.centre.edu">http://www.centre.edu</a>.

# <u>Procedures for Testing Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures</u>

An evacuation drill is coordinated by DPS each semester for all residential facilities on campus. A second drill is coordinated for those buildings where it was determined that the evacuation was not satisfactory. Students learn the locations of the emergency exits in the buildings and are provided guidance about the direction they should travel when exiting each facility for a short-term building evacuation. DPS does not tell residents in advance about the designated locations for long-term evacuations because those decisions are affected by

time of day, location of the building being evacuated, the availability of the various designated emergency gathering locations on campus, and other factors such as the location and nature of the threat. In both cases, DPS and Student Life staff on the scene will communicate information to students regarding the developing situation or any evacuation status changes.

The purpose of evacuation drills is to prepare building occupants for an organized evacuation in case of an emergency. At Centre, evacuation drills are used as a way to educate and train occupants on issues specific to their building. During the drill, occupants 'practice' drill procedures and familiarize themselves with the location of exits and the sound of the fire alarm. In addition to educating the occupants of each building about the evacuation procedures during the drills, the process also provides the College an opportunity to test the operation of fire alarm system components.

Evacuation drills are monitored by the DPS and Student Life staff to evaluate egress and behavioral patterns. Reports are prepared by participating departments, which identify deficient equipment so that repairs can be made immediately. Recommendations for improvements are also submitted to the appropriate departments/offices for consideration. Students receive information about evacuation procedures during their first floor meetings.

#### Shelter-in-Place Procedures—What it Means to "Shelter-in-Place"

If an incident occurs and the buildings or areas around you become unstable, or if the air outdoors becomes dangerous due to toxic or irritating substances, it is usually safer to stay indoors, because leaving the area may expose you to that danger. Thus, to "shelter-in-place" means to make a shelter of the building that you are in, and with a few adjustments this location can be made even safer and more comfortable until it is safe to go outside.

Basic "Shelter-in-Place" Guidance If an incident occurs and the building you are in is not damaged, stay inside-seeking an interior room-until you are told it is safe to come out. If your building is damaged, take your personal belongings (purse, wallet, ID card, etc.) and follow the evacuation procedures for your building (close your door, proceed to the nearest exit, and use the stairs instead of the elevators). Once you have evacuated, seek shelter at the nearest College building quickly. If police or fire department personnel are on the scene, follow their directions.

How You Will Know to "Shelter-in-Place". A shelter-in-place notification may come from several sources, including DPS, Student Life Staff members, and other College employees.

How to "Shelter-in-Place" No matter where you are, the basic steps of shelter-in-place will generally remain the same. Should the need ever arise; follow these steps, unless instructed otherwise by local emergency personnel:

- 1. If you are inside, stay where you are. Collect any emergency shelter-in-place supplies and a telephone to be used in case of emergency. If you are outdoors, proceed into the closest building quickly or follow instructions from emergency personnel on the scene.
- 2. Locate a room to shelter inside. It should be:
  - An interior room;
  - Above ground level; and

- Without windows or with the least number of windows. If there is a large group of people inside a particular building, several rooms maybe necessary
- 3. Shut and lock all windows (tighter seal) and close exterior doors.
- 4. Turn off air conditioners, heaters, and fans.
- 5. Close vents to ventilation systems as you are able. (College staff will turn off ventilation as quickly as possible.)
- 6. Make a list of the people with you and call the list in to DPS so they know where you are sheltering. If only students are present, one of the students should call in the list.
- 7. Turn on a radio or TV and listen for further instructions.
- 8. Make yourself comfortable.

# **Sexual Misconduct Policy**

We pledge continuing efforts to build and strengthen a community enriched by our differences and founded upon our common humanity.

- I. Overview of Sexual Misconduct
- II. Resources
- III. Reporting Options and Considerations
- IV. <u>Complaint Procedures</u>
- V. Sexual Misconduct Policy Definitions

#### I. Overview of Sexual Misconduct

As a fundamental policy and in compliance with Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 ("Title IX"), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and all other applicable federal and state non-discrimination laws, Centre College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national or ethnic origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, veteran's status, or genetic information in its educational programs and activities, admissions, and with regard to employment. Harassment based upon an individual's legally protected status is a form of prohibited discrimination. Centre College hires and promotes its employees and admits its students on the basis of merit, qualification, and character.

This Policy addresses the College's prohibition of sex discrimination. Sexual harassment, sexual assault, and other forms of sexual misconduct are forms of sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX.

Centre College is committed to a safe and healthy environment and, as such, will not tolerate sexual misconduct of any kind. In addition to violating this Policy, any form of sexual misconduct is also a violation of federal and state laws.

Sexual misconduct is a broad category of behaviors that includes but is not limited to sexual harassment, sexual violence, sexual exploitation, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking, cyber-stalking, bullying and cyber-bullying when based on sex or genders.

This Policy also expressly prohibits aiding or facilitating the commission of sexual misconduct, and retaliation against any individual involved in bringing a claim or supporting someone who brings a claim under this Policy. Sexual misconduct and other terms found within this Policy are defined in Section V below.

Sexual misconduct can occur between strangers or non-strangers, including people involved in a dating, intimate, or sexual relationship. Sexual misconduct can be committed by or experienced by persons of any gender, and it can occur between people of the same or different gender.

All students, faculty, staff, volunteers, contractors and visitors of the College are subject to this Policy. Sexual misconduct committed in connection with any College-sponsored activity is prohibited whether on or off campus. This Policy may also apply to off-campus conduct that the College has determined may cause an unacceptable disruption to the College or which may infringe on an individual's right to a non-discriminatory education and/or work environment. Individuals who violate this Policy are subject to disciplinary action deemed appropriate by the College; up to and including termination for employees, contractors, and volunteers; and up to and including no trespass orders for guests. Students are subject to sanctions up to and including suspension and expulsion. (The complete list of possible sanctions for a violation of this Policy is included below in Section IV.)

#### **II. Resources**

The College offers assistance and non-judgmental support to any party involved in an incident of sexual misconduct. The College understands that individuals involved in an incident of sexual misconduct will have questions and may need the support of on- and off-campus services. All parties are encouraged to utilize both on-campus and off-campus resources for assistance.

Any member of the College community involved in an incident of sexual misconduct can expect:

- The opportunity to meet with the Title IX Coordinator, or (in the case of absence or conflict of interest)
  other employees designated by the Title IX Coordinator to answer questions regarding the College's
  Sexual Misconduct Policy and/or complaint procedures for students and employees.
- Details about available on- and off-campus confidential resources, including medical assistance and counseling services.
- Information on the option to file a complaint with law enforcement authorities and assistance, if requested from the Department of Public Safety or other College officials in notifying and communicating with such authorities.
- Immediate measures by the College to prevent unnecessary or unwelcomed contact with or proximity to the other party. Such measures may include housing relocation, the imposition of no-contact orders, and adjustments to course or work schedules to prevent contact, as determined appropriate by the Title IX Coordinator or an official designated by the Title IX Coordinator.
- The right to be free from retaliation.

#### Title IX Coordinator and Title IX Team

The College's Title IX Team shall consist of the Title IX Coordinator, the Sexual Assault Prevention & Education Manager, the Directors of the Office of Public Safety, the Director of Diversity and Inclusion Programming, and a designated representative each from the Office of Student Life, the Office of Academic Affairs, and the Department of Athletics.

The Title IX Coordinator is the designated representative of the College with primary responsibility for coordinating the College's Title IX compliance efforts. The Title IX Coordinator has responsibility to lead the Team and designate members of the Team and other employees for specific tasks. The Title IX Coordinator shall ensure that the College responds to all reports in a timely, effective, and consistent manner. In addition, the Title IX Coordinator is responsible for ensuring that the review, investigation, and resolution of all reports of sexual misconduct are done according to this Policy and applicable law. Any member of the Team can be contacted with questions about the College's Sexual Misconduct Policy or with concerns about sexual misconduct at the College. The Team will provide resources and will also discuss options for pursuing both informal and formal resolution of a sexual misconduct complaint. Please note: All of the members of the Title IX Team are required to report, to the Title IX Coordinator, any reports of sexual misconduct. Please see below, under Section III, "Confidentiality" for a full explanation of the list of confidential resources.

#### The members of the Title IX Team are:

#### Kay L. Drake, Title IX Coordinator, Investigator

Vice President for Human Resources and Administrative Services Horky House, First Floor 859-238-5464 kay.drake@centre.edu

#### Sarah Cramer, Title IX Team Member

Sexual Assault Prevention & Education Manager Horky House, First Floor 859-238-5519 <a href="mailto:sarah.cramer@centre.edu">sarah.cramer@centre.edu</a>

#### Brian W. Daniel, Title IX Team Member

Director of Residence Life
Nevin Hall Residence Office, Room 112B
859-238-5946
brian.daniel@centre.edu

#### **Gina Nicoletti-Bellinger, Title IX Team Member**

Associate Athletic Director
Sutcliffe Hall, Athletics Administration Office
859-238-5493
gina.nicoletti@centre.edu

#### Ashley Oliver, Title IX Team Member

Director of Diversity and Inclusion Programming Campus Center, Second Floor

859-238-6520 ashley.oliver@centre.edu

#### Gary Bugg, Title IX Team Member, Investigator

Director of Public Safety Public Safety Office, West Walnut Street 859-238-5535 gary.bugg@centre.edu

#### Kevin Milby, Title IX Team Member, Investigator

Director of Public Safety
Public Safety Office, West Walnut Street
859-238-5534
kevin.milby@centre.edu

#### Dr. Mary Gulley, Title IX Team Member

Asst. Dean for Advising, Asst. Professor of Psychology Old Centre, Dean's Office 859-238-5223 mary.gulley@centre.edu

The Title IX Coordinator oversees the resolution of reported sexual harassment and other sexual misconduct through the College's resolution processes. The appropriate process followed will be determined by the role of the person alleged to have violated this Policy:

- **Complaints against Students** will be resolved under the direction of the Vice President and Dean of Student Life: 859-238-5471 or Associate Dean of Student Life: 859-238-5743.
- **Complaints against Staff** will be resolved under the direction of the Vice President for Human Resources and Administrative Services: 859-238-5467.
- **Complaints against Faculty** will be resolved under the direction of the Vice President for Academic Affairs: 859-238-5226 or Associate Dean: 859-238-5205.
- Complaints against non-student/faculty/staff visitors to campus will be resolved under the direction of the Title IX Coordinator or a college official designated by the Title IX Coordinator: 859-238-5467.

Questions or concerns may also be directed to the Office of Civil Rights of the United States Department of Education. (The OCR Office for colleges in the state of Kentucky is in Philadelphia.)

U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights 100 Penn Square East, Suite 515 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3323 Telephone: 215-656-8541

TDD: 877-521-2172 Fax: 215-656-8605

E-mail: OCR.Philadelphia@ed.gov

#### What to Do if You Need Immediate Help

Any student, employee, or member of the College community who experiences sexual violence is encouraged to immediately notify law enforcement (911) and/or seek immediate medical assistance. Centre College's Department of Public Safety will provide transportation, upon request. The Department of Public Safety can be reached at 859-236-4357 or by dialing for "HELP" (4357) on a campus phone.

If you have experienced sexual violence, you are advised to:

- 1. **Go** to a safe place.
- 2. Call someone that you trust a good friend, your family, a counselor, or a chaplain.
- 3. **Seek** medical care as soon as possible at any emergency medical facility, such as Ephraim McDowell Regional Medical Center's Emergency Room or the University of Kentucky Emergency Room. To preserve your legal options, it is important to have a medical exam to assess for physical injuries and to collect evidence. You may have the exam and then decide not to pursue legal action. The medical provider will address the risk of pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections. Prophylactic medications will be offered. The medical examination is free. To preserve evidence and to assist the examination:
  - a. **Be sure NOT to** bathe, douche, urinate, or defecate prior to arriving at the Emergency Room.
  - b. **Be sure NOT to** change clothes. If you have already removed clothing, place it in a <u>paper</u> bag and bring it with you.
  - c. **Take** extra clothes with you, as clothing will likely be held as evidence.
  - d. **Please** ask for someone you trust or a member of the Faculty or Staff to go with you. (Please note that most employees of the College are obliged to report information about sexual misconduct to the Title IX Team; see Article III, Confidentiality, for a list of confidential resources.)
- 4. **Report** the assault to campus authorities, local law enforcement and/or to one of the members of the Title IX Team (however, see below regarding confidentiality). Individuals are strongly encouraged to come forward to report an assault and to receive appropriate professional counseling. In addition to being a violation of this Policy, sexual assault is a criminal act, and the College takes sexual misconduct very seriously. Centre College is committed to ensuring a safe campus for all students and employees.

# **III. Reporting Options and Considerations**

In this policy, the following terms and definitions will be used:

- Report any complaint or information provided to the Title IX Coordinator, Title IX Team, or a Responsible Employee regarding an incident of sexual misconduct, whether provided by the person experiencing the incident of sexual misconduct, a third party, or another.
- Reporting Party the individual who reports to have experienced or is reported to have experienced an incident of sexual misconduct.
- Responding Party—the individual(s) against whom allegations of sexual misconduct have been made.

The College strongly encourages reports of any incident of sexual misconduct to be made as soon after the incident as possible. A Reporting Party has the right and can expect to have incidents of sexual misconduct

taken seriously by the College when reported. Only people who need to know will be told and information will be shared only as necessary with investigators, witnesses, and the Responding Party.

Different people on campus have different reporting responsibilities and different abilities to maintain confidentiality under Title IX and College policy, depending on their roles. When consulting campus resources or speaking with someone at the College about sexual assault, you should be aware of confidentiality and mandatory reporting as required by law in order to make informed choices.

If you are unsure of someone's duties and ability to maintain the confidentiality of your conversations, ask them before you talk to them. They will be able to tell you, and help you make decisions about who can best assist and/or support you.

# **Responsible Employees**

Certain employees at the College are considered "Responsible Employees" under Title IX, which means that they are employees who are required to report any alleged sexual misconduct incidents to the Title IX Coordinator.

The following are Responsible Employees under this Policy:

- The President of the College;
- All members of the senior administration (vice presidents, associate vice presidents, deans, athletic director, special and executive assistants to the president, and the chief communications officer);
- The Title IX Team;
- All employees within the Department of Public Safety;
- The Student Life Office members;
- Resident Assistants and Residence Directors;
- The Athletics Department;
- The Human Resources Office;
- All Faculty; and
- Staff who have sufficient authority to take action to address the concern (because, for example, the Staff member supervises the person whose behavior is being complained of or the Staff member has authority over the office or venue where the misconduct occurred).

To formally report an incident of sexual misconduct and/or related concern, you are encouraged to contact a member of the Title IX Team (see <u>Section II</u>, above, for contact information).

You may also inform any of the Responsible Employees, listed above. Because the College is required by law to investigate these matters, all Responsible Employees must report any claims or incidents arising under the Sexual Misconduct Policy to the Title IX Coordinator.

#### Confidentiality

Once the College has received a Report of possible sexual misconduct, complete confidentiality may not be possible. The College is required by law to protect the safety of its campus and its campus community. When the College receives a Report of sexual misconduct, it has a legal obligation to respond in a timely and appropriate manner. Reasonable attempts will be made to preserve confidentiality. Only those employees with a legitimate need-to-know will be kept apprised of the investigation details. Additionally, the Reporting Party, the Responding Party, and any third parties involved in an investigation will be advised of the need to preserve confidentiality.

However, based on information gathered, the College may determine that it has a responsibility to initiate an investigation or a complaint procedure (even without the Reporting Party's participation). The College will balance any requests for confidentiality against the responsibility to provide a safe and nondiscriminatory environment for all students, staff, and faculty. Complete confidentiality could handicap the College's ability to conduct a thorough investigation of the allegations.

The Title IX Coordinator will evaluate all requests for confidentiality to determine the extent to which the College can preserve confidentiality and still satisfy its obligations under Title IX and this Policy. In determining whether a Reporting Party's request of sexual misconduct can be kept confidential or not be acted upon, Centre College will consider multiple factors, including:

- whether the incident involved the use of a weapon;
- if there have been other reports of misconduct committed by the accused student;
- whether the incident involved multiple perpetrators;
- whether the incident suggests a pattern of misconduct at a particular location or by a particular organization or person;
- the risk of harm to self or others; or
- the Reporting Party's willingness to pursue a complaint.

When the College is obligated to provide the College community with timely warnings, names of the individuals are not used and every effort will be made to remove identifying information.

#### **Confidential Disclosure**

Despite the College's strong interest in having individuals report allegations of sexual misconduct, the College realizes that not every individual is prepared to make a Report to the College.

The College has designated certain specific persons as confidential resources for individuals who prefer to speak with someone confidentially about their concerns. These confidential resources will not tell anyone else your private, personally identifiable information unless there is cause for fear for your safety, or the safety of others.

If you want details of the incident to be kept confidential, you should speak with one of the following confidential resources:

- Centre College Counselors;
- the College Chaplain;
- Parsons Student Health Center staff; and/or
- Off-campus mental health providers or rape crisis providers (even they are providing services on campus, they are considered providers from outside the College, and are, therefor, confidential resources).

Persons in these positions are not required to disclose any personally identifiable information given in confidence, unless given permission by the individual, the allegations involve the physical or sexual abuse of a child or vulnerable adult, or there is an imminent threat to the life of any person. (On-campus confidential resources will submit non-identifying, anonymous information about violations of this Policy to the Department of Public Safety and the Title IX Coordinator for purposes of legally required statistical reporting under the Clery Act.)

# **Reports to Law Enforcement**

As noted above, Reporting Parties are strongly encouraged to notify local law enforcement authorities of any criminal sexual misconduct. Individuals will be assisted, upon request, in notifying law enforcement by the Department of Public Safety or the Title IX Coordinator. They can assist you with making claims, petitioning for restraining orders, and/or advising on other legal options that may be available to you. If requested, they will accompany you to the police station. Ampersand (formerly known as the Bluegrass Rape Crisis Center) can also assist with restraining orders, legal resources, or accompany to the police department.

Note that if you choose only to communicate with a confidential resource (and do not notify a Responsible Employee or law enforcement), no further action will be taken.

# **IV. Complaint Procedures**

Complaints are generally initiated by individuals who believe that their rights under this Policy have been violated, but any individual (including a representative of the College) may initiate a complaint.

As soon as a Responsible Employee of the College receives sufficient information alleging a violation under this Policy, that Responsible Employee is normally expected to report the information to the Title IX Coordinator within 5 business days. "Sufficient information" in this sense means information, reasonably credible and specific, to provide a reasonable basis to believe that a violation of this Policy occurred. Upon receipt of this information, which may or may not be deemed a formal complaint at this point, the Title IX Coordinator may conduct or direct to be conducted a preliminary inquiry to determine if an investigation is necessary or appropriate. This preliminary inquiry may include preliminary interviews of the parties, witnesses, or other individuals or reviews of evidence.

If the Title IX Coordinator determines an investigation is necessary and appropriate, the investigation will normally begin within 5 business days, unless unusual or complex circumstances exist. (See below, under Formal Resolution Process, for details of what is involved in an investigation). The investigation will be timely and impartial. Barring unusual or unforeseen circumstances, the investigation will be completed, including any formal proceedings that occur, within 60 calendar days from the time a formal complaint is initiated. If the investigation extends beyond 60 calendar days, the College will explain the reason for the delay to both parties and keep them apprised of the modified timeline. At the conclusion of the investigation and proceedings (if any), written notification about the outcome of the investigation and any appeal will be delivered concurrently to the Reporting Party, the Responding Party and any appropriate College officials.

If an individual decides to file a formal complaint, a detailed written (typed, emailed, or handwritten) statement of the alleged incident(s) must be submitted to the College. This formal statement must be signed and dated. The statement should be as specific as possible, including dates, times, locations, a description of the alleged misconduct and the name(s) of the accused person(s). A list of any person(s) who may have information that would be helpful to the review and resolution process should also be provided. See the Formal Resolution Process below.

# **College's Responsibility**

Once a Report of sexual misconduct is formally made to one of the Responsible Employees, the College is obligated by law to investigate and to take appropriate action regardless of whether the Reporting Party wishes to participate or considers the behavior sexual misconduct.

The College's authority to investigate, to compel cooperation, or to impose sanctions against those who are not members of the College community is limited. The informal and formal processes as described below apply to faculty, staff, and students of the College. Complaints against guest lecturers, volunteers, vendors, and visitors will be referred to the Title IX Coordinator or his/her designee for investigation and appropriate action.

#### **Immediate College Action**

Upon receiving a Report of sexual misconduct, the Title IX Coordinator or a College employee the Title IX Coordinator designates will take appropriate immediate actions to protect the safety and well-being of the individuals involved in a complaint of sexual misconduct. Generally, such actions include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Notify the Responding Party of the allegations made;
- 2. Provide a copy of the Sexual Misconduct Policy to both parties;
- 3. Establish an agreement between the parties that they are not to initiate contact with the other party or parties until further notice by the College. Failure to cooperate or honor the agreement could result in restricting either party's presence on campus;
- 4. Take such other immediate measures to prevent contact with or proximity to the other party, including housing relocation, adjustment to work or class schedules and/or other measures as deemed appropriate by the Title IX Coordinator or designee;
- 5. Have each of the parties and any witnesses acknowledge the expectation of confidentiality as outlined in this Policy;
- 6. Advise all parties and any witnesses that they may not retaliate against any party or any witness involved in any investigation under this Policy.

# The Rights of the Parties

The Reporting Party and Responding Party can expect the College to respect the rights of all involved by following the appropriate stated College sexual misconduct resolution process.

Rights of the Reporting Party and the Responding Party:

- To choose to pursue an informal process or formal process, if applicable, as outlined in this Policy.
- To have the allegations investigated in a thorough and timely manner.
- To refrain from making self-incriminating statements. (However, the College will make a determination of whether a violation of the Sexual Misconduct Policy occurred based on the information presented.)
- To be informed of the outcome of the sexual misconduct resolution process.

Although a reported concern may come in through many sources, the College is committed to ensuring that all reports are referred to the Title IX Coordinator. This ensures consistent application of this Policy to all individuals and allows the College to respond promptly and equitably to resolving the concern.

# **Availability of Formal and Informal Resolution Options**

When a Reporting Party or the College chooses to move forward with a complaint, there are two avenues for resolution of an alleged policy violation; formal and informal resolution. Informal resolution is permissible where all parties voluntarily agree to participate in an informal resolution. An informal resolution does not involve a full investigation and adjudication (finding of responsibility). An informal resolution may proceed after both parties receive a full disclosure of the allegations and their options for formal resolution and if the

College determines that the particular complaint is appropriate for informal resolution. If a complaint is processed informally, the Reporting Party, Responding Party, or College has the option to move the complaint to the formal process at any time. The Informal Process and/or mediation are typically not available in cases involving sexual violence, but if the informal process is requested the parties and the College could agree to pursue an informal process.

Each resolution process is guided by the same principles of fairness and respect for all parties. Resources are available for both students and employees, whether as Reporting Parties or Responding Parties, to provide guidance throughout the investigation and resolution of the complaint. These resources are maintained by the Title IX Team and available through the Student Life, Human Resources, and Academic Affairs offices, as appropriate.

While the resolution processes for students, faculty, and staff might differ from one another, each process will include the following, essential attributes:

- The parties will have an equal opportunity to present relevant witnesses and other evidence;
- While it is not required of any party to have an advisor, each party has the opportunity to have present an advisor of their choice, who may be an attorney or Ampersand advocate, but that advisor may not participate in the meeting, hearing, or procedure, other than advising the party;
- In any resolution process involving a standard of proof, the College will use the preponderance-of-the-evidence standard (that is, more likely than not that sexual misconduct occurred);
- The burden of demonstrating that a case of sexual misconduct occurred and that the Responding Party is responsible for that misconduct lies with the College;
- If either party is allowed to introduce third-party expert testimony, both parties will be allowed to do so on the same basis;
- Where appeals are allowed, each party will have the same opportunity to appeal as the other; and
- Both parties will be notified, in writing at the same time, of the outcome of both the complaint and any appeal.

# **Informal Resolution Process**

#### Purpose

The informal process is an opportunity to bring resolution to an informal complaint through awareness, education, and/or a facilitated discussion. The Title IX Coordinator will appoint a College official to facilitate the informal resolution. During an informal process, written statements are not taken from the Reporting Party or the Responding Party, and no hearing is conducted. As such, there will not be a finding of responsibility for a violation, nor will there be disciplinary sanctions levied against a Responding Party; however, there could be requirements of certain behavior or the undertaking of certain acts that are required as a part of the informal resolution of the matter.

#### **Step 1: Facilitate Resolution**

This process utilizes the information gathered during the preliminary inquiry or investigation to facilitate an appropriate resolution to the informal complaint. The following are examples of possible options, one or more of which may be used to bring resolution to an informal complaint.

#### **Potential Informal Actions:**

- 1. Distribute a copy of the Sexual Misconduct Policy as a reminder to the person, group, or area where behavior is being questioned;
- 2. Educate all parties regarding the College's Sexual Misconduct Policy;
- 3. Advise the person(s) how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the behavior to the alleged harasser:
- 4. Conduct a sexual misconduct educational workshop for the designated group or department;
- 5. Meet with the Responding Party to raise awareness about alleged inappropriate behavior and provide notice about possible College consequences;
- 6. Facilitate discussion among all the parties involved, if all parties are in agreement to do so;
- 7. Institute alternative work/living arrangements, class schedule, advisor/supervisor arrangements; or
- 8. Limit contact or impose a no-contact order between the Reporting Party and Responding Party.

#### **Step 2: Document Informal Resolution**

At the conclusion of the informal process, a letter summarizing the outcome(s) of the process will be sent by the College official leading the process to the Reporting Party and Responding Party and other appropriate College officials to bring closure to the matter (see Retention of Documents section in this Policy).

If the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the parties utilizing the informal process, and/or the College determines the matter should be resolved through the formal process, the Reporting Party, the Responding Party and/or the College may pursue the formal process. In such an instance, the Reporting Party, the Responding Party, and/or the College may pursue the formal process within 5 business days of the date on the informal outcome letter.

# **Formal Resolution Process**

The College offers a formal process leading to resolution of a complaint if: the complaint involves sexual violence; the informal resolution is not agreed upon or fails to satisfactorily resolve a concern; and/or the College determines the formal process is appropriate or necessary.

# Investigation

The College will strive to complete a thorough, fair, impartial, and timely investigation. The Title IX Coordinator will appoint an investigator, who is normally a trained member of the Title IX team to conduct the investigation. The Reporting Party and the Responding Party will be notified in writing of the investigator(s) assigned to their case.

The investigator will require the Reporting Party or College representative making the complaint to complete Step 1. Steps 2-5 will follow.

# **Step 1-Reporting Party's Written Statement:**

The Reporting Party will be asked to complete a written statement of the sexual misconduct allegations. The statement should be as specific as possible, and, to the extent the information is available, including dates,

times, locations, a description of the alleged misconduct and the name(s) of the Responding Party(ies). The Reporting Party should also provide a list of any person(s) who may have information that would be helpful to the investigation and hearing process. The Reporting Party will submit the above information to the investigator.

# **Step 2: College's Response:**

Once the Reporting Party has submitted the written statement of allegations, the investigator will likely meet with the Reporting Party to discuss his/her/their complaint and to ask any clarifying questions from the written statement. The investigator will make sure that the Reporting Party has been adequately advised of available immediate measures (such as housing reassignments, security escorts, or class schedule changes) that are appropriate prior to a hearing on the complaint.

The investigator will then contact the Responding Party to schedule a meeting to discuss the allegations. Within a reasonable period of time prior to the scheduled meeting time to discuss the allegations, the investigator will provide, typically in person, to the Responding Party a written notice of the allegations, including the parties involved, the specific section of the Sexual Misconduct Policy or other parts of the student Code of Conduct alleged to be violated, the precise conduct that is alleged to constitute the potential violation, and the date and location of the alleged incident. This notice may be a copy of the Reporting Party's complaint statement if it includes this necessary information. During the meeting with the Responding Party, the investigator will ask questions and listen to his/her/their version of the incident. During the meeting the Responding Party will have the right to have present an advisor, who may be an attorney, but the advisor will not be permitted to participate in any way in the meeting, except to advise the Responding Party.

#### **Step 3: Responding Party's Response:**

The investigator will ask the Responding Party to provide a written response to the allegations by a specified date or within a reasonable period of time necessary to keep the process moving forward. The Responding Party will be asked also to provide a list of any person(s) who may have information that would be helpful to the investigation and hearing process. A copy or summary of the response will be forwarded to the Reporting Party or the College representative bringing the complaint, as the case may be (with names and personally identifying information of other students redacted consistent with state and federal law)

#### **Step 4: Witness Statements and Other Evidence**

The investigator will collect any witness statements and other evidence he or she deems important to help assess whether sexual misconduct has occurred.

#### **Step 5: Investigation Report**

Upon gathering all the relevant evidence and speaking with the parties and witnesses deemed relevant by the investigator, the investigator will prepare an investigation report to be reviewed by the Title IX Coordinator. The investigation report will contain a summary of the information and documents collected during the investigation and which the investigator considers relevant. This investigation report will be sent to the appropriate College Hearing Office, as set forth below, as well as being shared with the Reporting Party and Responding Party, with any information redacted consistent with federal and state law. The parties will also have access to any information that will be used during any administrative hearings.

# **Administrative Hearing**

The function of this hearing is for a College Hearing Officer (see below for the identity of the hearing office) to hear from the Reporting Party, the Responding Party, and/or any other witness the hearing officer deems necessary to determine whether it is more likely than not that the Responding Party is responsible for the misconduct alleged, whether the conduct violated the College's Sexual Misconduct Policy, and, if so, to determine an appropriate sanction. Hearing officers will be trained in the conducting of fair hearings, in the terms of this Policy, and of issues involved in sexual misconduct, including victim trauma. The College Hearing Officer will receive a copy of the Investigation Report.

All administrative hearings will be conducted by the following College Hearing Officers:

- **Complaints against Students** will be heard by the Vice President and Dean of Student Life (or a designee). Please see below for the Hearing Procedure;
- **Complaints against Staff** will be heard by the Vice President for Human Resources and Administrative Services (or a designee). Please see the Staff Handbook for the Sexual Misconduct Hearing Procedure;
- **Complaints against Faculty** will be heard by the Vice-President for Academic Affairs (or a designee). Please see the Faculty Handbook for the Sexual Misconduct Hearing Procedure.

#### **Hearing Procedure:**

- 1. The Reporting Party and Responding Party will be notified of the date, time and location of the hearing.
- 2. The hearing is closed and generally includes only the Reporting Party, the Responding Party, and the College Hearing Officer (the Hearing Officer may permit another College official to act as an observer of the proceedings, but not as a participant). The College Hearing Officer may meet with the parties together or separately, based on the circumstances. (The Reporting Party will not be required to attend a hearing with the Responding Party, but may meet separately with the Hearing Officer or otherwise participate remotely.)
- 3. Both parties are allowed to have an advisor for the hearing (for example, an employee of Ampersand (formerly BRCC) or a parent could serve as an advisor). The advisor (for either party) may be an attorney, but the advisor is not allowed to participate in the hearing in any manner. The advisor may attend and consult with the person they are advising, but may not ask questions and/or otherwise engage in the process. If a party's attorney is present, then the College may also have an attorney present. If a party decides to have an advisor present at the hearing, then the party must provide at least 48-hours' advance notice that the advisor will be present, along with the name of the advisor, and whether the advisor is also an attorney. The College will endeavor to inform the other parties if any of the parties is planning to include an advisor in the hearing.
- 4. The Reporting Party and Responding Party may each submit a written statement concerning the alleged misconduct, the effect of the misconduct, and the appropriate sanction. The College Hearing Officer has discretion to limit the testimony or information offered if it is cumulative, irrelevant, or otherwise not helpful to the determination of responsibility or sanction.

- 5. The College Hearing Officer may ask questions of the Reporting Party, of the Responding Party, and of any other witnesses and will consider the statements and any relevant information in the Investigation Report.
- 6. The College Hearing Officer will determine whether the Responding Party has violated the College's Sexual Misconduct Policy. If there is a determination of violation, then the College Hearing Officer will also determine, after consultation with appropriate College personnel, appropriate sanction(s) against the Responding Party. The College Hearing Officer will also determine if any remedies are appropriate to provide to the Reporting Party following the hearing process.
- 7. After the hearing is concluded, the Responding Party and Reporting Party will be informed in writing at the same time of the outcome and the rationale for the same. The sanction(s) will be communicated in writing to the Responding Party, and any sanction(s) that directly relate to the Reporting Party will be communicated in writing to the Reporting Party. Also, any College administrators, faculty, or staff who require the information to carry out the sanction(s), will receive the appropriate information. The Reporting Party will also receive information on any remedies that are available to him/her/them.

# **Appeal Process**

The Responding Party or the Reporting Party each may appeal the decision and/or sanction to the President (if the President determines there is or could appear to be a conflict of interest, the President may designate another person to act in place of the President). Appeals are only available on the bases for appeal set forth below. Appeals must be submitted to the Title IX Coordinator within (5) five business days of receipt of the written decision and must specify the grounds for the appeal.

The grounds on which an appeal may be filed with the President are limited to the following:

- 1. New information not available to the hearing officer which, if available at the time of the hearing, may have affected the decision;
- 2. Evidence that established procedures were not followed in a manner that may have affected the decision, and/or;
- 3. The sanction was disproportionate for the violation.

Any appeal filed pursuant to this Policy shall be shared with the other party(ies) within 2 business days of the receipt of the appeal. The other party will have 3 business days to respond in writing, sending the response to the Title IX Coordinator.

The President shall review the report and sanctions to be imposed, and may review any documents, materials, or statements obtained during the investigation or presented during the hearing. In addition, the President shall review the appeal document and any response received from the non-appealing party(ies). The President may accept, reject, or modify the finding and/or sanctions based on one or more of the three, above-listed grounds for appeal.

The President will, under normal circumstances, make a final decision on the appeal within 10 business days of receiving the timely-filed appeal and timely-filed responses. The President will communicate the decision, in writing, to the Title IX Coordinator, who will forward the decision to the Responding Party, the Reporting Party, and the College Hearing Officer who conducted the underlying hearing in the case.

The Title IX Coordinator shall forward the President's decision to the Responding Party's department chair, dean/supervisor, and appropriate vice president(s).

The President's decision shall be final.

# **Disciplinary Action**

Should disciplinary action be required, it will be taken by the following College officials, after consultation with appropriate Centre personnel:

- Students: Disciplinary action will be taken by the Vice President and Dean of Student Life.
- **Staff:** Disciplinary action will be taken by the supervisor and Vice President for Human Resources and Administrative Services.
- Faculty: Disciplinary action will be taken by the Vice President for Academic Affairs.

#### **Sanctions**

The sanctions available under these processes are intended to reflect the facts and circumstances of a particular case as best they can be determined. Sanctions also are premised on the College's role as an educational institution. Sanctions may be issued individually, or a combination of sanctions may be imposed. The determination of sanctions is based upon a number of factors, including: the harm suffered by the Reporting Party; any ongoing risk to either the Reporting Party or the community posed by the Responding Party; the impact of the violation on the community, its members, or its property; any previous conduct violations; and any mitigating or aggravating circumstances.

Depending upon the severity of the misconduct and other factors pertinent to the situation and the parties involved, for a student, the sanctions range as follows (as provided in the Student Handbook):

- 1. Warning—A notice in writing to the student that the student is violating or has violated institutional regulations.
- 2. Probation—A written reprimand for violation of specified regulations. Probation is for a designated period of time and includes the probability of more severe disciplinary sanctions if the student is found to violate any institutional regulation(s) during the probationary period.
- 3. Loss of Privileges—Denial of specified privileges for a designated period of time.
- 4. Fines—Previously established and published fines may be imposed.
- 5. Restitution—Compensation for loss, damage, or injury. This may take the form of appropriate service and/or monetary or material replacement.
- 6. Discretionary Sanctions—Work assignments, essays, service to the college, or other related discretionary assignments.
- 7. Residence Hall Relocation—Relocation of the student from one room or residence hall to another room or residence hall either for a definite period of time, or indefinitely.
- 8. Residence Hall Suspension—Separation of the student from the residence halls for a definite period of time, after which the student is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified.
- 9. Residence Hall Expulsion—Permanent separation of the student from the residence halls.
- 10. College Suspension—Separation of the student from the college for a definite period of time, after which the student is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified.
- 11. College Expulsion—Permanent separation of the student from the college.

In addition, the sanctions could include a requirement of counseling or education. For faculty and staff, the sanctions range from a warning to termination of appointment/employment, and could include a requirement of counseling or education.

# **Final Report**

Upon completion of a sexual misconduct investigation, the file containing all documentation relating to the complaint will be maintained in the Human Resources Department in a separate confidential file.

A copy/copies of the final outcome or determination letter from any formal disciplinary action will be maintained in accordance to the following guidelines:

- Students: In the Student's file, maintained by the Vice President and Dean of Student Life.
- Staff: In the Staff member's personnel file, maintained in the Human Resources Department.
- **Faculty:** In the Faculty member's personnel file, maintained in the Human Resources Department, and within the office of the Vice President of Academic Affairs.

As required by law, Centre College Department of Public Safety collects and annually reports statistical information concerning sexual misconduct that occurs within its jurisdiction.

# **V. Sexual Misconduct Policy Definitions**

# **Reporting Party**

The individual who reports to have experienced or is reported to have experienced an incident of sexual misconduct.

#### **Responding Party**

The individual(s) against whom allegations of sexual misconduct have been made.

#### **Sexual Misconduct**

Conduct based on an individual's sex that excludes an individual from participation, denies the individual the benefits of, treats the individual differently or otherwise adversely affects a term or condition of, an individual's employment, education, living environment or participation in a program or activity. Sexual misconduct encompasses all forms of sexual harassment, differential treatment based on sex, and gender-based harassment.

#### **Sexual Harassment**

The College prohibits sexual harassment. Harassment on the basis of sex is a form of sexual misconduct. Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when (1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a requirement of employment or participation in a College program or activity, (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or other College decisions affecting such

individual, or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or academic performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, academic, or campus environment.

The College recognizes two types of sexual harassment: quid pro quo (something for something) and hostile environment misconduct. *Quid pro quo harassment* occurs where sexual activity is demanded in exchange for an actual, tangible job or academic benefit. *Hostile environment harassment* exists where the conduct creates an environment that may impair another individual's academic or professional performance, or hinder his/her/their ability to function within the community.

Examples of sexual harassment can include, but are not limited to: sexual exploitation; stalking with a sexual or gender based component; relationship intimidation; sexually-charged name calling; retaliation against someone who reports sexual harassment; and use of language or the presentation of posters/banners and/or t-shirts that promotes the diminishing of a particular sex or gender.

#### **Sexual Violence**

The College prohibits sexual violence. Sexual violence, a form of sexual misconduct, refers to physical acts perpetrated against a person's will or where a person is incapable of giving consent due to the victim's use of drugs or alcohol. An individual also may be unable to give consent due to an intellectual or other disability. Sexual assault, rape, sexual battery, and sexual coercion are all acts of sexual violence. Examples include, but are not limited to:

- Having or attempting to have sexual intercourse with another individual without consent. Sexual intercourse includes vaginal or anal penetration, however slight, with a body part or object, or oral copulation by mouth-to-genital contact.
- Having or attempting to have sexual contact with another individual without consent. Sexual contact
  includes kissing, touching the intimate parts of another, causing the other to touch one's intimate
  parts, or disrobing of another without permission. Intimate parts may include the breasts, genitals,
  buttocks, mouth or any other part of the body that is touched in a sexual manner.

#### Consent

Consent for sexual activity is based on the mutual understanding and respect of all people involved for the desires and wishes of their partner(s). In order for individuals to engage in sexual activity of any type with each other, there must be clear consent. Consent is sexual permission. Consent:

- Is mutually understandable when a reasonable person would consider the words or actions of the parties to have manifested an understandable agreement between them to do the same thing, in the same way, at the same time and with one another;
- Is not merely the absence of a verbally stated "no", silence without actions demonstrating permission, cannot be assumed to show consent;
- Is never final or irrevocable;
- Is time-limited and situation-specific; even if someone obtained consent from a partner(s) in the past, this does not mean that consent is automatically granted again;
- Can only be given by someone who is free from verbal or physical pressure, coercion, intimidation, threat, or force; and

• Can only be given by someone in an unimpaired state of mind who is able to understand what is happening.

Consent is not valid if the person from whom consent is sought is impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs, is asleep, passed out, or unconscious. There is not consent when:

- A person is forced to submit through use of forcible compulsion.
- A person does not expressly or implicitly acquiesce in the other party's conduct under circumstances other than forcible compulsion or incapacity to consent.
- A person is deemed to be incapable of consenting because he/she/they is/are less than 16 years old,
  has an intellectual or other disability that prevents them from having the capacity to give consent, or is
  physically helpless.
- A person is mentally incapacitated or physically helpless due to the influence of any intoxicating substance.
- A person is unconscious or for any other reason is physically unable to knowingly communicate unwillingness to act.

The use of alcohol or drugs does not minimize or excuse a person's behavior or responsibility for committing sexual misconduct. If you were assaulted while under the influence of alcohol or other drugs, your intoxicated state does not excuse the behavior of your attacker.

#### Incapacitation

Incapacitation is a state where one cannot make a rational, reasonable decision because they lack the ability to understand the: who, what, when, where, why or how of their sexual interaction. Sexual activity with someone one knows to be, or should know to be, mentally or physically incapacitated (by alcohol or other drug use, unconsciousness, sleep, blackout, or any other means) is an act of sexual misconduct.

#### **Capability to Give Consent**

An objective standard will be used in determining whether a person is incapable of giving consent due to the person's use or consumption of drugs or alcohol, or if a physical or mental condition as described above is present. That is, consent is not valid when:

(a) From the standpoint of a reasonable person, the Responding Party knew, or reasonably should have known, that the other person was incapable of giving consent due to the person's use or consumption of drugs or alcohol, or that the person's physical or mental condition would prevent knowing and voluntary consent; or (b) The person was, in fact, incapable of giving consent due to the person's use or consumption of drugs or alcohol, or the person was incapable of providing knowing or voluntary consent due to a physical or mental condition.

#### **Domestic Violence**

A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed by the victim's current or former spouse, current or former cohabitant, person similarly situated under domestic or family violence law, or anyone else protected under applicable domestic or family violence laws.

#### **Dating Violence**

Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship or intimate nature with the victim. The existence of such a relationship will be determined based on consideration of the following factors: the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

#### Stalking

The College prohibits stalking. Stalking is defined as a course of conduct involving more than one instance of unwanted attention, misconduct, physical or verbal contact, or any other course of conduct directed at an individual that could be reasonably regarded as likely to alarm or place that individual in fear of harm or injury, including physical, emotional, or psychological harm. This includes cyber-stalking, a particular form of stalking in which electronic media such as the internet, social networks, blogs, cell phones, texts or other similar devices or forms of contact are used to pursue, harass or make unwelcome contact with another person. Stalking and cyber-stalking may involve individuals who are known to one another or have an intimate or sexual relationship, or may involve individuals not known to one another.

#### **Sexual Exploitation**

The College prohibits sexual exploitation. Sexual exploitation happens when:

- a person takes non-consensual, unjust, or abusive advantage of another either for his/her own advantage or benefit, or for the benefit or advantage of anyone other than the one being exploited; and
- that behavior does not otherwise constitute one of the other defined sexual misconduct offenses.

Examples of sexual exploitation include, but are not limited to, prostitution, non-consensual video or audiotaping of sexual or other private activity, exceeding the boundaries of consent (e.g., permitting others to hide in a closet and observe consensual sexual activity, videotaping of a person using a bathroom), engaging in voyeurism, or engaging in consensual sexual activity with another person while knowingly transmitting an STD or HIV/AIDS without informing the other person of such infection.

#### Bullying

The College prohibits bullying and cyber bulling. Bullying or cyber bulling is harassing conduct that may take many forms, including verbal acts and name-calling; graphic and written statements, which may include use of cell phones or the Internet; or other conduct that may be physically threatening, harmful, or humiliating. Harassment does not have to include intent to harm, be directed at a specific target, or involve repeated incidents. Bullying or cyber bulling creates a hostile environment when the conduct is sufficiently severe, pervasive, or persistent so as to interfere with or limit a person's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or opportunities offered by the College. When such harassment is based on gender, sexual orientation, or perceived gender or sexual orientation, it is considered sexual misconduct.

#### Retaliation

It is a violation of this Policy to act or attempt to retaliate, intimidate, or seek retribution against anyone involved in or connected to reporting a concern, the investigation of, and/or the resolution of a sexual misconduct allegation. Retaliation against an individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX is also unlawful.

The College recognizes that retaliation can take many forms, may be committed by an individual or a group against an individual or a group, and that the Responding Party can also be the subject of retaliation by the Reporting Party or a third party. The College will take immediate and responsive action to any report of retaliation and may pursue disciplinary action as appropriate. An individual reporting sexual misconduct is entitled to protection from any form of retaliation following a report that is made in good faith, even if the report is later not proven.

#### **Responsible Employees**

The following are Responsible Employees under this Policy: The President of the College and all members of Senior Staff; members of the Title IX Team; all Public Safety employees, the Office of Student Life (including Resident Assistants and Residence Directors), the Athletics Department, the Human Resources Office, all Faculty, and any Staff who have sufficient authority to take action to address the concern (because, for example, the Staff member supervises the person whose behavior is being complained of or the Staff member has authority over the office or venue where the misconduct occurred).

# **Policy Statement Addressing Sex Offender Registration**

In accordance to the "Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act" of 2000, which amends the Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act, the Jeanne *Clery Act* and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, the Department of Public Safety is providing a link to the Kentucky State Police Sex Offender Registry. This act requires institutions of higher education to issue a statement advising the campus community where law enforcement information provided by a State concerning registered sex offenders may be obtained. It also requires sex offenders already required to register in a State to provide notice of each institution of higher education in that State at which the person is employed, carries a vocation, or is a student. Pursuant to KRS 17.580, the Kentucky State Police provides sex offender registration information to the public through this website. The link to the Kentucky State Police sex offender registry is http://www.kentuckystatepolice.org/sor.htm.

#### **Centre College Missing Student Policy**

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for the college's response to reports of missing students, as required by the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008.

This policy applies to students who reside in campus housing, including off-campus apartment units leased by the college for student residents.

For purposes of this policy, a student may be considered to be a "missing student" if the student's absence is contrary to his/her usual pattern of behavior and unusual circumstances may have caused the absence. Such circumstances could include, but not be limited to, a report or suspicion that the missing person may be the

victim of foul play, has expressed suicidal thoughts, is drug dependent, is in a life-threatening situation, or has been with persons who may endanger the student's welfare.

- I. Procedures for designation of confidential emergency contact information
  - A. Students will be given the opportunity during each semester registration process to designate an individual or individuals to be contacted by the college no more than 24 hours after the time that the student is determined to be missing in accordance with the procedures set forth below. A designation will remain in effect until changed or revoked by the student. This information will be maintained confidentially and will be available only to the Department of Public Safety and the Student Life Office. Should the student not formally declare a separate missing person contact, the emergency contact on record will be notified.
  - B. In the event a student who is under the age of 18 and is not emancipated is determined to be missing pursuant to the procedures set forth below, the college is required to notify a custodial parent or guardian, in addition to the student's designated contact, no more than 24 hours after the student is determined to be missing in accordance with the procedures set forth below.
- II. Official notification procedures for missing students
  - A. Any individual on campus who has information that a residential student may be a missing student must notify the Department of Public Safety as soon as possible and in no event, later than 24 hours after determining that the student is missing.
  - B. Note: In order to avoid jurisdictional conflicts when an off-campus and/or commuter student is believed to be missing, the reporting person should immediately notify local law enforcement authorities. The Department of Public Safety will assist external authorities with these investigations as requested.

The Department of Public Safety will gather all essential information about the residential student from the reporting person and from the student's acquaintances (description, clothes last worn, where student might be, who student might be with, vehicle description, information about the physical and mental well-being of the student, an up-to-date photograph, class schedule, etc.). Appropriate campus staff will be notified to aid in the search for the student.

If the above actions are unsuccessful in locating the student or it is apparent immediately that the student is a missing person (e.g., witnessed abduction), no later than 24 hours after the Department of Public Safety determines that a residential student is missing:

- a. the Department of Public Safety will contact the appropriate local law enforcement agency to report the student as a missing person and the local law enforcement agency will take charge of the investigation; and
- b. the Dean of Students will notify the emergency contact (for students 18 and over) or the emergency contact and the parent/guardian (for students under the age of 18) that the student is believed to be missing.
- III. Campus communications about missing students.

- A. In cases involving missing students, law enforcement personnel are best situated to provide information to the media that is designed to elicit public assistance in the search for a missing student. Therefore, all communications regarding missing students will be handled by outside law enforcement authorities, who may consult with the college's Communications Office. At this point, all inquiries to the College regarding missing students, or information provided to any individual at the College about a missing student, shall be referred to the Communications Office, who shall refer such inquiries and information to law enforcement authorities.
- B. Prior to providing the Centre community with any information about a missing student, the Communications Office shall consult with the Department of Public Safety and with local law enforcement authorities to ensure that communications do not hinder the investigation.

# **Campus Fire Safety Annual Compliance Report**

#### Overview

The Higher Education Opportunity Act (Public Law 110-315) became law in August 2008, requiring all United States academic institutions to produce an annual fire safety report outlining fire safety practices, standards, and all fire-related on-campus statistics related to student housing. The following public disclosure report details all information required by this law as it relates to Centre College.

# **On-Campus Housing Fire Safety Equipment**

At Centre College, all of our large residence halls are protected by fire detection and alarm systems. Of those, Pearl Hall, Breckinridge Hall, Brockman Commons, Ruby Cheek House, 762 West Main, Yerkes Hall, and Wiseman Hall are centrally monitored 24 hours/day, seven days/week. These buildings are also equipped with either emergency generators or lighting fixtures that incorporate backup batteries; upon loss of power, these systems automatically activate to assure adequate egress lighting in hallways and emergency exit stairwells. Carbon monoxide detectors have been installed in all residence hall mechanical rooms where products of combustion could occur. All fire safety systems and equipment are strictly maintained and tested in accordance with applicable national standards.

#### Fire Safety Education, Training and Fire Drills

All on-campus residents (including those with special needs) receive fire safety training at the beginning of each academic year. Training on fire and life safety is also provided to all Residence Advisors, Residence Directors, and all First-Year students during Orientation. Each resident is required to review and comply with the requirements outlined in the **Student Handbook** which includes information on fire safety and what appropriate action to take during a fire alarm or fire emergency. There is an emergency evacuation map posted on each floor to direct occupants to exits.

Fire drills are conducted in all residence halls and fraternity/sorority houses two times per year. Fraternity and sorority houses are located on Centre College property and must follow the same procedures that apply to residence halls.

Fire safety inspections for every residence hall room are conducted during fall break. Safety violations and/or fire hazards are noted and students found to be in violation are notified. A re-inspection of those rooms found

to be in violation is conducted over Thanksgiving break. Students who have not made corrections are held responsible and are fined for a safety violation and for their lack of compliance.

# **Fire Prevention Related Policies and Programs**

# **Fire Safety Regulations and Policies**

- A. Smoking is not allowed inside any student residential facility belonging to the College, including individual rooms.
- B. Electric appliances and other items such as, but not limited to, hotplates, George Foreman type grills, toaster ovens, frying pans, waffle irons, portable heaters, microwave ovens (over 900 watts), refrigerators (over 6 cubic feet), self-installed ceiling fans, halogen lamps, candles, live Christmas trees, and air conditioners may not be used in any residence hall room.
- C. No more than one over-stuffed chair or one sofa may be placed in any residence hall room.
- D. Extension cords may be used on a limited basis but must be UL approved, heavy-duty 14-gauge wire, and may not be located under a bed or rug.
- E. Motorcycles and bicycles may not be kept in the residence hall/house rooms, hallways, stairwells, or in any other location, which would interfere with fire exits from the building or cause a safety hazard for others. Locked bicycle sheds are located at three locations on campus.
- F. All Christmas or other decorations must be fireproof and the lights UL approved and must be taken down before students leave for break. Live Christmas trees are not permitted.
- G. Candles, oil lamps, or other open-flamed items for decorations or for any other use are prohibited.
- H. Halogen lamps and incense are strictly prohibited.
- Access to and from residence hall/house rooms (doors and windows) must be kept clear. Clothing, trash, books, etc. must not be placed in such a manner as to inhibit easy entrance to or exit from the room.
- J. All carpet must be fire resistant.
- K. Strategically located fire extinguishers must be used only in accordance with the instructions listed on the side of each extinguisher.
- L. Fires may be burned in outdoor grills only under the following conditions:
  - a. When a specific person fills out in advance a registration form available from the Department of Public Safety and takes responsibility for assuring safe conditions and seeing that the registered fire is extinguished;
  - b. When a fire extinguisher is kept nearby;

- c. At times prior to midnight.
- d. A copy of regulations and procedures will be provided by the Department of Public Safety to any person(s) requesting permission to build such fires.
- e. The use or possession of fireworks anywhere on campus at any time is prohibited. Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action.
- f. Flammable materials may not be stored in any residence unit. Contact the Department of Public Safety for authorized areas of storage. For further information concerning storage, see the section on Residence Life in this Handbook.
- g. Safety inspections for every residence hall room are conducted during fall break. Safety violations and/or fire hazards are noted and those students found to be in violation are notified. A re-inspection of those rooms found to be in violation is conducted during Thanksgiving break. Students who have not made corrections are held responsible and are fined for a safety violation and for their lack of compliance.
- h. Please refer to the Standard Fines listing in this section of the Handbook for any of the previously mentioned violations.

# **Fire Evacuation Procedures**

- A. If you are in the hallway:
  - a. Leave by the nearest exit.
  - b. Pull the alarm on the way out.
- B. If you are in your room:
  - a. Put on shoes and grab a towel.
  - b. Feel door and knob for heat.
- C. If knob or door is hot:
  - a. STAY IN ROOM.
  - b. Stuff towel or clothing under door to prevent smoke from entering.
  - c. Go to window to notify fire fighters that you are in the room. Wait for the fire fighters to affect a rescue.
- D. If you can leave your room (knob or door is not hot):
  - a. Open door cautiously and exit room.
  - b. Close door behind you.
  - c. Leave building in a quick but orderly fashion by designated exit. If the exit is blocked by smoke or fire, proceed to alternate exit. Get completely out of the building. Make sure all fire doors are closed behind you.
  - d. Meet with the rest of the residents of the living unit at a designated meeting place outside of the building. This meeting place will be determined by each living unit at the beginning of each school year.
  - e.

- E. If fire is in your room:
  - a. Exit room immediately.
  - b. Close door behind you.
  - c. Pull nearest fire alarm.
  - d. If fire is containable, use nearest fire extinguisher.
  - e. Call the Danville Fire Department (9-911 or 238-1220).
  - f. Notify the Department of Public Safety HELP (4357 on campus or 236-4357 off campus) and your RA **whenever** there is a fire in the building regardless of whether or not the fire department is called.

# **Campus Crime and Fire Log**

A log of all fires reported including nature, date, time and general location.

The log is maintained by the Department of Public Safety on-line at <a href="https://centrenet.centre.edu/ICS/New\_Campus\_Life/Public\_Safety/Crime\_Log.jnz">https://centrenet.centre.edu/ICS/New\_Campus\_Life/Public\_Safety/Crime\_Log.jnz</a>. All fires should be reported to the Centre College Public Safety at (859) 236-4357 for non-emergency issues or 9-911 for an emergency.

Centre College Crime Statistics Reporting Table 2019

OFFENSE	YEAR	ON- CAMPUS PROPERTY	ON-CAMPUS STUDENT HOUSING FACILITIES	NONCAMPUS PROPERTY	PUBLIC PROPERTY
	2018	0	0	0	0
MURDER/NON-NEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER	2017	0	0	0	0
	2016	0	0	0	0
	2010	Ü	Ů	0	Ü
	2018	0	0	0	0
NEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER	2017	0	0	0	0
	2016	0	0	0	0
	====				
	<u>2018</u>	3	2	0	0
RAPE	<u>2017</u>	3	3	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	7	7	0	0
	0040	2	0	0	0
FONDLING	2018	2	2	0	0
FONDLING	2017	2	1	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	1	1	0	0
	2018	0	0	0	0
INCEST	2017	0	0	0	0
	2016	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	0	0	0
	2018	0	0	0	0
STAUTORY RAPE	2017	0	0	0	0
	2016	0	0	0	0
DODDEDY	<u>2018</u>	0	0	0	0
ROBBERY	2017	0	0	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
	2018	0	0	0	0
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT	2017	0	0	0	0
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	2016	0	0	0	0
	<u>2018</u>	3	1	0	0
BURGLARY	<u>2017</u>	6	5	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	6	5	1	0
	2018	1	0	0	0
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT	2017	0	0	0	0
WOTOR VEHICLE THEFT		0	0	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	U	0	U	U
	2018	0	0	0	0
ARSON	2017	2	2	0	0
	2016	1	1	0	0
	<u>2018</u>	0	0	0	0
ARRESTS:	<u>2017</u>	0	0	0	0
WEAPONS: CARRYING, POSSESSING, ETC.	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
DIOOIDI INADV DEEEDO AL O	2018	1	1	0	0
DISCIPLINARY REFERRALS:	<u>2017</u>	0	0	0	0
WEAPONS: CARRYING, POSSESSING, ETC.	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
	2040	2	2	0	
ADDECTC:	<u>2018</u>	2	2	0	0
ARRESTS:	2017	1	0	0	0
DRUG ABUSE VIOLATIONS	<u>2016</u>	1	0	0	1
	2010	9	1	0	0
DISCIDI INADV DEEEDDALS.	<u>2018</u>				0
DISCIPLINARY REFERRALS:	<u>2017</u>	9	7	0	0
DRUG ABUSE VIOLATIONS	<u>2016</u>	2	2	0	0

	2018	0	0	0	0
ARRESTS:	2017	0	0	0	0
LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
	<u>2018</u>	44	35	0	0
DISCIPLINARY REFERRALS:	2017	33	28	0	0
LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS	2016	29	28	0	1
	<u>2018</u>	0	0	0	0
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE:	<u>2017</u>	0	0	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
	2018	1	1	0	0
DATING VIOLENCE:	2017	1	1	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0
	<u>2018</u>	1	0	0	0
STALKING:	<u>2017</u>	0	0	0	0
	<u>2016</u>	0	0	0	0

No hate crimes were reported for 2018.

# **Centre College Residential Fire Protection Information**

Residential Facilities	Fire Alarm Monitoring Done off Site	Partial 1 Sprinkler System	Full 2 Sprinkler System	Smoke Detection	Fire Extinguisher Devices	Evacuation Plans/ Placards	Number of fire drills each academic year
Acheson/Caldwell				Х	X	Х	2
ADPI House				Х	Х	Х	2
Beta House				Х	Х	Х	2
Bingham Hall		Х		Х	Х	Х	2
Breckinridge Hall	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	2
Brockman Commons	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	2
Cheek/Evans				Х	Х	Х	2
Cooper/Ganfield				Х	Х	Х	2
Deke House				Х	Х	Х	2
123 Fifth Street Apt.				Х	Х	Х	2
125 Fifth Street Apt.				Х	Х	Х	2
129 Fifth Street Apt.				Х	Х	Х	2
Fox Hall				Х	Х	Х	2
Kappa Delta	Х			Х	Х	Х	2
Kappa House				Х	Х	Х	2
LaMotte/Tyler				Х	Х	Х	2
762 West Main	X			Х	X	Х	2
Nevin Hall				Х	Х	Х	2
Northside	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	2
Pearl Hall	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	2
Phi Delta House				Х	Х	Х	2
Phi Tau House				Х	Х	Х	2
Rodes Apartments				Х	Х	Х	2
Ruby Cheek House	Х			Х	Х	Х	2
SAE House				Х	Х	Х	2
Sigma Chi House				Х	Х	Х	2
122 St Mildred's Ct				Х	Х	Х	2
Stuart Hall				Х	X	Х	2
Stevenson/Vinson				Х	Х	Х	2
Theta House				Х	X	Х	2
Tri-Delt House				Х	X	Х	2
Walnut House				Х	Х	Х	2
Wiseman Hall	х		х	Х	Х	Х	2
Yerkes Hall	Х			Х	X	Х	2

<sup>1.</sup> Partial Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in the common areas only.

There was one reported residential fire in 2018.

Small grease fire on a stove in the kitchen of a fraternity house.

<sup>2.</sup> Full Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in both the common areas and individual rooms.